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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Dear Shareholders — Ajial Real Estate and Entertainment Company

On my behalf and on behalf of my colleagues, the members of the Board of Directors, | am pleased
to present you, the 23rd Annual Report of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co., accompanied with
the Financial results for the fiscal year ended on 31st December 2019.

Dear Shareholders:

In the year of 2019, the Company continued with developing Al-Andalus Project, a multi-purpose
project located in Hawalli, on a land of 10,300 Sgm and a built-up area of 58,600 sqm approximately.
The aim of this Project is to achieve an “urban sector” feeling, with strong relationship between
interior and exterior spaces, combining between entertainment, health, work and shopping. The
project contains offices, medical clinics, commercial shops, and a cinema. The design team of the
project aim was to link the design to the heritage associated with this location, where the first
Kuwaiti Cinema was established. It is expected that the project is to be completed by the year 2022.

The Company have maintained its rental revenue from Ajial Commercial and Entertainment
Complex, a leading and a unique facility in Al Fahaheel area. In addition, Ajial’s associates Al Hamra
Real Estate and Al Madar Al Thahabia Co. (Kingdom of Saudi Arabia) have also maintained their
excellent performance respectively. Firstly, Al Hamra Real Estate continued its growth through the
increase in occupancy rates in the Commercial Center and in the Business Tower. Secondly, Al Madar
Al Thahabia Co. achieved profits in 2019 through the continuous growth in rates of occupancy in
hotel apartments, the increase in the number of offices rent was the main contributor in achieving
these revenues. We hope see more continuity in the growth of operational revenues.
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Financial Report

The balance sheet of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co. clearly explains the Company’s financial
position for the fiscal year ended on 31/12/2019. The Company’s net profit has reached KD 2,001,582
with an EPS of 10.87 fils compared to KD 2,459,326 in 2018, with an EPS of 13.35 fils. Moreover, this
represents a decrease of 18.61%. due to an extraordinary gain in the previous year resulted from
a reversal of excess provosion for legal claims. Furthermore, the operational income has increased
36.20% from KD 2,447,773 in 2018 to KD 3,333,949 in 2019.

Administrative and general expenses have risen by 5.88% from KD 761,505 in 2018 to KD 806,299 in
2019. Along with finance costs which have also risen 18.81% from KD 472,466 in 2018 to KD 561,323
in 2019.

The consolidated balance sheet shows that the assets have increased 6.49% from KD 134,354,292 in
2018 to KD 143,072,673 in 2019, and total liabilities have increased 54.14% from KD 12,047,123 in
2018 to KD 18,570,209 in 2019. Furthermore, Shareholders’ equity is up 1.79% from KD 122,307,169
in 2018 to KD 124,502,464 in 2019.

The board of directors proposed the distribution of 5% bonus shares for the shareholders in the
fiscal year ended on 31st December, 2019.

In the end, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude and appreciation to
all Shareholders, Stakeholders, the Board and Staff members of this great company. We look forward
to a future filled with higher achievements by laying the groundwork for the more progress and
growth.

Yours sincerely,,,

Shk. Ali Al Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah

Chairman
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Project Overview

The objective of developing such program is to cater for the society a new entertainment destina-
tion within an urban context pleasant space for outdoor activities and recreation above and beyond
the food and beverage offerings. The cinema facility shall attract considerable volume of traffic that
shall admire the space for its distinctiveness in terms of landscape and retail/F&B offering mix. The
different components of the project are the core of the Business Need, since the activities are com-

plementary along with all facility services, structured in a very urban innovative theme concept
leading to its success.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Overall view

In the heart of Hawalli district lays the project land plot # 17 sector 24 is about 10,356 square meters
with a main narrow frontage on Beirut Street surrounded by secondary streets.

Concept theming

The shopping street mall will offer a unique experience, an alternate option to the typical shopping
malls in Kuwait. The desire is to achieve a human-scale “urban sector” concept, with strong relation-
ship between interior and exterior spaces. The overall inspiration of the project is from urban tissue,
the architectural language and proportions respect the pedestrian scale. The general ambiance is
about the treatment of the spaces, seating areas, square & plaza, patio, walkways, greenery, bal-
conies and urban fixtures are to be considered main components and characteristics of the project

Allocated program

the main components of the project are;

° Cinema Facilities @ Basement Level including 11 Theatres.
° Retail shops and restaurant/cafes, in the GF & Mezzanine.
° Health club/GYM 1st floor level.

° Clinics from 2nd to 7th floor

° Business Offices from 8th to 16th level

° Landscaping

= Outdoor seating areas for all shops, circulation zone, Semi-pedestrian Street, plaza,
green areas and water features.

- Different scenarios for outdoor activities such as: concerts, exhibition, outdoor cine-
ma, themed market, arts, kids’ activities, etc.
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Kuwait on 17" February 2020

To the Shareholders of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co.

Acknowledgement & Undertaking of
Integrity and Fairness of Statements

The Board of Directors acknowledge and undertake that the financial reports are provided in a fair
and a sound way, they present all financial aspects of the company, including data and operational
results, and they are prepared accurately in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
approved by Capital Markets Authority for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Shk. Ali Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah

Chairman Vice Chairman

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak Al Kandari
Board Member & CEO Board Member

Ms. Tahani Muslett Al Ajmi

Board Member
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

Rule - 1: Construct a Balanced Board Composition

e Brief on the composition of the Board of Directors, as follows:

Board Member Status X
. . . Date of Election/
(Executive/Non-Executive/ Education ]
Name . Appointment of
Independent), or Board Qualification
Board Secretary
Secretary
Shk. Ali Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah Non- Executive Board Member BA 01 Aug 17
Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah [Non- Executive Board Member BA 01 Aug 17
Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash Executive Board Member BA 01 Aug 17
Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi Independent Member MA 01 Aug 17
Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak Al Kandari |Independent Member BA 01 Aug 17
Mr. Abdulwahab Nabeel Al Oraifan Board Secretary BA 01 Aug 17

e Brief on the professional experience of the Board of Directors:

Shk. Ali Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah:

Skh. Al Sabah has over 40 years of experience in in the banking and real estate sectors. He was the
chairman of Tijara & Real Estate Investment Co. and a Board member in Gulf bank and Kuwait Real
Estate bank, which later on transformed to (Kuwait International Bank).

Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah:

Shk. Al Sabah is the vice chairman of the Board and board member in Mjas General Trading Co. and
has over 13 years of experience in the investment and real estate sectors. Shk. Al Sabah holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Boston University, USA.

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash:

Mr. Al Khatrash is a board member and CEO of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co. has over 20
years of experience in the investment and real estate sectors. He previously held the position of
deputy CEO in Tijara & Real Estate Investment Co. Mr. Al Khatrash holds a Bachelor’s degree in MIS
from Northeastern University, USA.
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi:

Ms. Al Ajmi has over 24 years of experience various sectors such as investment, real estate and
market research. She is the deputy CEO in Tijara & Real Estate Investment Co. and an independent
board member in Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co. Ms. Al Ajmi holds a Master degree in Strategic
Management.

Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak Al Kandari:

Mr. Al Kandari has over 20 years of experience in the investment, real estate and banking sectors. He
is a Board member in Commercial Bank of Kuwait, Technology Industrial Gases Production Co., and
Venture Capital Bank (Bahrain). As well as the executive vice president in Securities Group, Kuwait.
Mr. Al Kandari holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and Finance.

¢ Brief on the Company’s Board of Directors’ meetings, through the following statement:

Meeting (1) | Meeting (2) | Meeting (3) | Meeting (4) | Meeting (5) | Meeting (6)

Number of
Name of Member .
11/2/19 31/3/19 01/5/19 24/6/19 15/7/19 21/10/19 Meetings
Shk. Ali Abdullah
Al-Sabah v - v v v v 5
(Chairman)
Shk. Hamad Mubarak
Al-Sabah v v v v v v 6

(Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal
Al-Khatrash v v v v v v 6

(Board Member & CEO)

Ms. Tahani Al-Ajmi v v v v 4

(Independent Member B 5
Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak
Al-Kandari v v v v v v 6

(Independent Member)

e A summary of how to apply the requirements of registration and coordination and
keeping the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors of the company:

The role of the Board Secretary of Ajial is to improve the efficiency of Board meetings and to ensure
proper implementation of the resolutions made by the Board and Committee Members. To do so,
minutes of meetings are documented and sorted out for each meeting, together with agendas
and reports which are all kept in a safe and secure place. All minutes contain lists of attendees,
absentees, topics of discussion and submitted reports and proposals. All are accessible and available
for all Board Members at any time according to corporate governance rules and regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

Rule - 2: Establish Appropriate Roles and Responsibilities

Brief on how the company defines the policy of the tasks, responsibilities, and duties of
each of the Members of the Board of Directors and executive management members,
as well as the powers and authorities delegated to the executive management:

The Board of Directors have developed the BOD charter which defined the roles and responsibilities
of the Board and Executive Management as per the approved Company’s organization structure.
The Board also approved the policies and procedures of Board Committees and the Company’s
departments in detail.

Powers and authorities delegated to the Executive Management are as follows:

1.

W

Carry out and implement the strategies set out by the Board of Directors.

Develop executive objectives of each department and link such plans with the overall plan.
Overall monitoring of all departments and operations.

Ensure proper coordination between departments.

Problem solving issues related to the Management.

. Review and update the internal policies and procedures of the company and accordingly distribute

it to the Employees.

Achievements of the Board of Directors during the year:

. Increased the operating income of the company.
. Exit of equity investments and focused mainly on property/real estate investments.
. Continue with the development of Al Andalus project.

. Increased marketing activities and events in Ajial Mall.

11
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

e Brief about the application of the formation requirements of independent specialized
committees by the Board of Directors:

Name of Committee

Audit Committee

Risk Committee

Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

Date of Formation

& Term

1 August 2017

3 years

1 August 2017

3 years

1 August 2017

3 years

Number of Meetings

6

4

1

Committee Members

and Chairman

o Shk. Hamad Al Sabah (Chairman)
0 Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi (Member)

o Mr. Mohammed Al Kandari
(Member)

0 Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi (Chairman)
0 Mr. Abdulaziz Al Khatrash (Member)

0 Mr. Mohammed Al Kandari
(Member)

o Shk. Hamad Al Sabah (Chairman)

0 Mr. Abdulaziz Al Khatrash
(Member)

0 Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi (Member)

Committee Functions
and Achievements

during the year

o Regular review of the company’s
financial statements and the
observations made by the
external auditors.

o Consult the board on the
appointment of the External
auditors and monitor their
activities.

o Monitor the company
internal audit function and
recommend the appointment
and termination of the internal
auditor.

o Ensure compliance with the
rules and regulations of the
regulatory authorities.

o Evaluate systems and
mechanisms of identifying,
measuring and monitoring
various types of risks that may
face the company as well as the
company’s acceptable risk level.

o Prepare regular reports on the
company’s risk exposure and
present these reports to the
Board.

o0 Approve the renumeration
of the Board of Directors and
Executive Management.

o Approve the new employee
grade and salary structure.

o Approve the changes made on
the Remunerations Policy

e A summary of how to apply the requirements that allow the Members of the Board of
Directors to obtain accurate and timely information and data:

The Company has made all information available to Board Members that enables them to carry
out their supervisory role over the Executive Management. Any meetings may be arranged with
the Executive Management through the Board Secretary. Board Members, especially Independent
Members, are encouraged to visit the Company with or without the presence of the Top Management.
In addition, if Board Members have any query or question about any information or documents,
they are free to approach the Board Secretary first so that he can coordinate with the CEO and the
Board Member.
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

Rule - 3: Recruit Highly Qualified Candidates for the Board of Directors &
Executive Management

e Brief about the application of the formation requirements of the nominations and
remunerations Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been formed in accordance with corporate
governance rules and regulations issued by Capital Markets Authority taking into consideration the
following requirements in the selection of Committee Members:

1. The Committee is comprised of three members.

2. The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Board Member.

3. Chairman of the Board or CEO may be a Committee Member.

The objective of this committee is to attract highly experienced skilled Employees and to retain

Employees with potential. Hence improving the competitive edge of the Company by carrying out
the following functions and responsibilities:

1. Develop a clear remuneration policy for Board Members and executive management.
2. Ensure that the remuneration policy is in line with the interest of the Shareholders.

3. Prepare a detailed annual report to the Shareholders on the remuneration given to the Board
Members and Executive Management.

4. Recommend on the nomination of Executive positions.

e Report on the remunerations to the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management:

The Board of Directors proposed a total bonus of KD 50,000 to be paid to the Board Members for the
year ended 31st December 2019, subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting. In Addition,
a total bonus of KD 68,500 to be paid to all staff members for the year ended 31st December 2019.

Rule - 4: Safeguard the Integrity of Financial Reporting

e Written undertakings by both the Board of Directors and the Executive Management of
the soundness and integrity of the prepared financial reports:

The Executive Management have submitted a written undertaking that the Company’s financial
reports are provided in a sound and fair manner, presented all financial aspects of the Company,
including data and operational results, and prepared in accordance with the International Accounting
Standards approved by the Capital Markets Authority. Moreover, the annual report submitted to
Shareholders includes the Board’s undertaking / acknowledgement of the soundness and integrity
of all financial statements and reports related to the Company’s activities.

13
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Corporate Governance Report 2019

e Brief about the application of the formation requirements of the audit committee:

The Audit Committee was formed in accordance with the corporate governance rules and regulations
issued by Capital Markets Authority, taking into consideration the following requirements in the
selection of Committee Members:

1. Committee to be formed of at least three members including an Independent Member.
2. Chairman of the Board and CEO shall not be Committee Members.

3. Chairman of Committee shall be a Non-Executive Board Member.
4

. Committee shallinclude at least a member of educational qualification and/or practical experience
in the accounting and financial fields.

¢ In case of any conflicts between the recommendations of the audit committee and the
resolutions of the Board of Directors, a statement shall be included detailing and clarifying
the recommendations and the reason(s) of the Board of Directors non-compliance therewith:

There has been no conflict between the Audit Committee recommendations and Board decisions
which would require a detailed statement that explains such conflicts.

e Verification of the independence and neutrality of the external Auditor:

The Company takes into account the principles and rules of Capital Markets Authority towards ensuring
independence and neutrality of External Auditors. Following the best governance practices, the Company
shall evaluate the External Auditor on annual basis based on a specific mechanism focusing on the
performance, professionalism and independence under the supervision of the Audit Committee.

Rule - 5: Apply Sound Systems of Risk Management and Internal Audit

e A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements of a department/
an office/ an independent unit of risk management:

The Company has appointed a Risk Management Coordinator whose responsibility is to identify and
monitor the risks associated with the Company’s activities. As a result, the Company’s risk exposure
has been evaluated by preparing periodic reports to the Risk Management Committee. As best
practice measures, the Risk Management Coordinator is fully independent by reporting directly to
the Board through the Risk Management Committee without granting him any financial authorities.

e Abrief about the application of the formation requirements of the risk management committee:

Risk Management Committee is formed in accordance with corporate governance rules and
regulations issued by Capital Markets Authority, taking into account the following requirements in
the selection of the Committee Members:

1. Committee to be formed of at least three members, including an Independent Member.
2. Chairman of the Board shall not be a Committee Member.

3. Chairman of Committee shall be a Non-Executive Board Member.

14
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e Summary clarifying the control and internal audit systems:

The Company has a good internal control environment that includes all company activities. The
organizational structure of the Company supports the dual audit (Four Eyes Principles). An external
office has been appointed to prepare an Internal Control Review (ICR) report which allows the
Company to identify and address the weaknesses of such controls.

¢ A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements the internal audit
department / office / unit:

The Audit Committee considered the cost/benefit of establishing an internal audit unit within the
Company orappointanexternal firmto carry out the internal audit activities. As aresult, the Committee
decided to appoint an external firm to cooperate with the Company’s internal Audit Coordinator
to carry out such activities. The Audit Committee should ensure the efficiency of the Company’s
operations and that the internal audit structure covers all the Company’s areas of activities.

Rule - 6: Promote Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards

e A summary of the business charter including standards and determinants of code of
conduct and ethical standards:

The code of conduct and ethical standards charter the company adopted guides the company’s
dealings with all clients, employees, and the community in which it operates. Implementing
this charter is considered one of the most important components of the corporate governance
framework. The Board and Executive Management are fully committed to support the application
of these standards regardless of the potential negative consequences. Failure to adhere to these
standards will be investigated and may lead to disciplinary action being taken or refer certain cases
to the regulatory authorities.

The Company is also committed to achieving the highest levels of governance and has established
those values by applying measures to maintain confidentiality of information by adopting a Whistle-
blowing policy which encourages Employees to report any complaint related to bad behavior / illegal
or unprofessional actions. The company aims to provide new tools for better communication and to
allow whistleblowers to disclose their communications in full confidentiality.

e Summary of the policies and mechanisms on reducing the conflicts of interest:

Conflict of interest occurs when the interest of an Employee is in conflict with that of the Company.
In order to ensure maximum levels of transparency and objectivity, the Company at all times
ensures that its transactions are carried out on the basis of equality, fairness and integrity. The
policy of related party transactions has been reviewed and considered to be consistent with the
Company’s activities. In addition, the Company adopted a set of procedures regulating disclosure of
potential conflicts of interest and the mechanism of addressing it. The Audit Committee is generally
responsible for implementing the policy of conflict of interest as well as monitoring and reviewing
the implementation of its procedures. However, the audit committee may delegate the daily
responsibilities of overseeing the compliance and the implementation of that policy and procedures
to whom it sees fit.
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Procedures for Mitigating Conflict of Interest:

1. Board members and senior officers should not have any direct or indirect interest in the contracts
and transactions of Company unless approved by General Assembly or was done at “arm’s length”
or at competitive market rates.

2. The Company should not grant any unauthorized credit facility or provide any guarantee to a
board member.

3. The employees shall not offer, ask for, provide or accept anything of value for favorable treatment
from the Company, customers, suppliers or potential suppliers or others

4. Those applying for tenders, contracts, supplying goods, for employment or rendering services,
have to declare their interests including relationships with Director or Senior officers with the
Company.

Rule - 7: Ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure & Transparency

e Summary of the application of mechanisms for presentation and accurate and
transparent disclosure that define aspects, areas and characteristics of disclosure:

The company aim is to enhance the accountability of the Company and its management, towards its
stakeholders in general by giving access to the accurate and consistent information that will enable
them to understand its governance, strategy, policies, activities, practices and facilitate evaluation
of its performance. In compliance with the requirements of CMA, the company applies the policy of
disclosure and transparency on the Board of directors and employees of the company. The Company
shall consistently make disclosures of inside information that is precise, has not been made public,
relates directly or indirectly to the company; and if made public, would have a significant effect on
the price of the company’s shares. The policy includes [a] methods for disclosing financial and non-
financial information [b] ways to disclose all information transparently, in a timely manner, without
discrimination [c] procedures through which information is categorized in terms of its material
importance, nature and periodicity.

The Company made the following disclosures during the year:

The issuance of the interim financial statements.

The shareholders who hold 5% or more of the company’s share capital.
BOD meeting results

Reschedule of credit facilities.

Announcement of the Annual General Assembly meeting and its results.

Disclosure of Unusual trading activity.

N o u b,k wDNRe

The approval permitting the Company to buy/sell its treasury shares.
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e Brief about the application of the requirements of the Board of Directors disclosure and
executive management disclosures:

The Company has in place a record of the disclosures and declarations made by Board Members and
Executive Management available for review by all Company Shareholders free of charge. In addition,
the Company is committed to update the aforesaid record’s information on a regular basis to reflect
the current state of these persons.

¢ A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements of a unit of investors affairs:

The Company established a unit for handling Investors’ affairs which is in charge of providing
information and reports required for its potential Investors. This unit is run by the Account’s Manager
but under the supervision of the CEO. Moreover, policies and procedures have been put in place to
ensure proper independence of the Investors’ affairs unit which enables these Investors to have
timely access to relevant information and reports.

e Brief on how to develop the infrastructure for the information technology on which it
shall significantly rely on in the disclosure processes:

The Company seeks to further enhance the use of its IT functions to build proper communication
channels with Shareholders, Investors and Stakeholders. A corporate governance section has been
created in the Company’s website, in which all updated information is made available to assist
Shareholders and Investors to exercise their rights to evaluate the Company’s performance.

Rule - 8: Respect the Rights of Shareholders

e A summary of the application of the requirements for the identification and protection of the
general rights of shareholders, in order to ensure fairness and equality amongst all shareholders:

The Company enforces the application of the shareholders rights policy to ensure that Shareholders have
timely access to the company information; including its financial performance, objectives, corporate
governance and the Company’s risk exposure. This will enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an efficient manner and allow Shareholders and Investors to easily interact with the Company.

The following are the general rights of a shareholder mentioned in the Company’s articles of
association:

1. The permission included in the Companies Law to adopt the Accumulative Voting system when
electing Members of a Board of Directors in the general assembly.

2. Any shareholder shall be entitled to authorize another person to attend to the general assembly
in accordance with a special proxy or an authorization prepared by the company for this purpose.

3. Allow shareholders to participate effectively in the general assembly and vote on the resolutions
thereof.

4. Develop an apparent policy for profits distribution of various types (cash/ non-cash) so that
shareholders’ and company’s interests are accomplished.
5. The general assembly shall disclose the proposed profits distribution and the date of distribution.
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6. When preparing the general assembly’s agenda, the Board of Directors shall consider adding the
matters / items that shareholders wants to discuss to the agenda of general assembly.

e A summary of the creation of a special record at the Clearing Agency as part of the
requirements for on-going monitoring of shareholders’ data:

A record is kept with the clearing company that contains the names, nationalities, address and number
of shares of each Shareholder of Ajial. Any changes to this information are updated accordingly. Any
Stakeholder may request access to information in the aforesaid record from Ajial or the clearing company.

¢ Brief on how to encourage shareholders to participate and vote in the company’s general
assembly meetings:

The Company encourages Shareholders to exercise their rights to participate in the Company’s
Annual General Meeting and vote regardless of their level or position. The Company’s Shareholders’
rights policy sets out the mechanism of participation and voting in the Annual General Meetings.

Rule - 9: Recognize the Roles of Stakeholders

e Brief about conditions and policies that ensure protection and recognition of the rights
of stakeholders:

As mentioned in the stakeholder’s policy the company is committed towards its stakeholders as
follows:

A. Stakeholders: To achieve sustainable value for stakeholders and strive to achieve good financial
returns and work for the benefit of the stakeholders.

B. Suppliers and service providers: Dealing in a direct and clear manner and on the basis of trust.
Striving to build and maintain good relationships with suppliers and service providers, and the
company must ensure that information related to them is kept confidential

C. Employees: Dealing with employees with dignity and respect and providing equal job opportunities
to all employees in the field of employment, which included matters related to recruitment,
compensation / benefits, professional development and promotions. It is the duty of the Board
of Directors to provide a safe and healthy work environment Taking into consideration respect for
human and employee rights.

D. Society: Participation in improving the standard of living wherever the company operates and
ensuring that resources are used reasonably in order to preserve the environment. The company’s
Board of Directors aim that the society is able to benefit from the company’s efforts in public,
charitable and other social activities.

¢ Brief on how to encourage stakeholders to keep track of the company’s various activities:

The Company allows Stakeholders to access information relevant to the Company’s activities in an
easy and timely manner. All Stakeholders are welcomed to express their views about the Company.
The Company’s policies encourage Stakeholders to inform the Board of any practices prohibited in
the Whistleblowing policy. The company and the stakeholders must also ensure the confidentiality
of the information, and the two parties should conclude an agreement in this regard.
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Rule - 10: Encourage and Enhance Performance

e A summary of the application of the requirements for the development of mechanisms
that allow Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to attend the
training programs and courses regularly:

The purpose of the Board of Directors & Executive Management training policy & procedures is to train the
Company'’s directors and members of the executive management, to identify the area of improvement and
to articulate the Company’s organizational goals for properly managing operations of the Company and also
to keep them abreast with the latest developments in the administrative, financial and economic fields.

Board Members and Executive Management performance is evaluated each year. Thus, the Company
provides ongoing training programs for Board and Executive Management as per their training
requirements. Professional/Personal development activities for members must be approved in
advance by the Board of Directors for which a training budget is prepared.

e Brief on how to evaluate the performance of the Board as a whole, and the performance
of each Member of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management:

The Company applies a self-appraisal policy for the Board and each Member separately through
a set of questions which allows each Member to evaluate themselves. In order to evaluate
their achievements and assess the challenges faced, and how it impacted the work quality and
performance. Eventually this will help them to benefit from the process and become more efficient.
The company uses Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to evaluate its Executive Management. At the
end of the year a comprehensive evaluation is done for each employee by their respective managers.
This evaluation is based on weights and percentages, that differ for every employee, to measure the
employee’s performance in achieving his/her goals.

e An overview of the Board of Director’s efforts in asserting the importance of corporate
value creation with the employees at the company through achieving the company’s
strategic goals and improving key performance indicators:

The Board of Directors is committed to develop an integrated reporting system to be acommunication
tool by setting out mechanisms relevant to corporate strategy, governance, performance and future
expectations. This will create value in the long term and bridge the gap between current company
reports and the information required by the investors in order to evaluate investment values and
company forecasts etc.
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The Board of Directors is committed to develop an integrated reporting system to be acommunication
tool by setting out mechanisms relevant to corporate strategy, governance, performance and future
expectations. This will create value in the long term and bridge the gap between current company
reports and the information required by the investors in order to evaluate investment values and
company forecasts etc.

Rule - 11: Focus on the Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility

e A summary of the development of a policy to ensure a balance between each of the
company goals and society goals:

Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] represents the continuous commitment of the Company through
ethical behaviour, to achieve sustainable development for society in general and its employees in
particular. The Board of Directors sets out the CSR policies and procedures for balancing social and
environmental objectives with the Company’s economic objectives and as part of its initiatives to
fulfil its social responsibility to stakeholders, employees, community and environment in the course
of conducting its business operations.

The Board, Human Resources [HR] department and employees are allocated CSR responsibilities as
follows:

Board of directors:
o Oversight of social and environmental risk management and CSR performance
o Ensure a balance between the Company’s objectives and the Community’s objectives

o Highlight the Company’s efforts in community service by implementing specific mechanisms and
programs, establishing performance benchmarks, comparison with peers and CSR work plans

Human Resources:
o Creating CSR awareness through educational programs for employees
o Planning and implementing awareness programs for community to identify the social responsibility
according to clear mechanisms and highlighting the issues that contribute to social development.

Employees:

o All employees are responsible for implementing CSR activities as formulated by the Board on
an ongoing basis. Employee involvement is a critical success factor for CSR performance.

e Brief about the programs and mechanisms helping to highlight the company’s efforts
exerted in the field of social work:

In order to achieve and maintain a proper balance between Socio-Environmental objectives and
the Company’s business objectives, the Company aims to meet its obligation towards Society,
Stakeholders, Employees, and the Environment by immersing in the field of Social work which
includes but not limited to the following:

o To support national manpower and boost its competitive edge and efficiency.
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Audit Committee Report For the Year Ended on 31 December 2019

Introduction

The Committee is comprised of three members, as follows:

1. Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Sabah ( Head of Committee )
2. Mr. Mohamad Abdulrazzak Al Kandari ( Member)
3. Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi ( Member)

Committee Meetings and Performance/Achievements:

Audit Committee holds its meetings on regular basis at least once each quarter of the year and when
required or necessary. The Committee Secretary prepares the minutes of meeting for each meeting
and keeps track of all of the Committee’s resolutions. The Committee held 6 meetings in 2019. The
key achievements of the Committee during the year are as follows:

* Ensuring soundness, transparency and integrity of the financial reports by reviewing period-
ically the financial statements and submitting their opinions and recommendations to the
Board.

* Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the External Auditors and
monitor their performance to ensure that they are not providing any other services other
than the audit profession.

* Supervising the Internal Audit activities and provide recommendations on the recruitment
and termination of the Internal Audit firm which carries out such activities for the Company.

* Reviewing the Internal Audit plan and results of the Internal Audit report.

* Reviewing the internal policies and procedures for the Company’s various departments and
ensure compliance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities.

* Consider the applied accounting policies and provide the Board of Directors with opinion and
recommendation in this regard.

Committee Opinion on Company Internal Control Process

As per Committee follow up and supervision of internal audit in 2019, and based on risk assessment,
the Committee believes that the Company has adequate and efficient internal control environment
in place, as no material weaknesses were found, and no failures have been detected in the internal
control systems.

The Executive Management continues to implement internal controls in a manner ensuring protec-
tion of the Company assets and integrity of financial statements. Along with the efficiency of the
operational activities of the Company with its financial, administrative and accounting processes.

Excellent cooperation and coordination at the professional and practical level remains in place with
Internal Auditors, which was reinforced by holding regular meetings to exchange information on
matters related to Audit, Administrative Control and Risk Management. Also, continuous communi-
cation of strategies, annual reports and individual plans have been made between the Internal Au-
ditors and Executive Management to ensure adequate and efficient supervision in order to address
any weaknesses and failures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AJIAL REAL
ESTATE ENTERTAINMENT COMPANY K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment
Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AJIAL REAL
ESTATE ENTERTAINMENT COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

a) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group represent a significant portion of the total assets as at 31
December 2019 and are carried at fair value. The management of the Group determines the fair
value of its investment properties on periodical basis and uses external appraisers to support the
valuation at year-end. The valuation of the investment properties at fair value is highly
dependent on estimates and assumptions such as rental value, occupancy rates, discount rates,
financial stability of tenants, market knowledge and historical transactions. Further, the
disclosures relating to the assumptions are relevant, given the estimation uncertainty and
sensitivity of the valuations. Due to the size and complexity of the valuation of investment
properties and the importance of the disclosures relating to the assumptions used in the
valuation, we identified this as a key audit matter. The Group’s policies for fair valuation of
investment properties are presented in accounting policies in Note 2 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

- We have reviewed the assumptions and estimates made by the management and the
external appraisers, appropriateness of the valuation technique and reasonableness of data
used in the valuation.

- We have evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis to ascertain the impact of
reasonably possible changes to key assumptions on the fair value of properties such as
rental income, occupancy rates, discount rates, and historical transactions.

- We have considered the objectivity, independence and expertise of the external appraisers.

- We assessed that the significant assumptions and related uncertainties are appropriately
reflected in the sensitivity disclosure in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

b) Impairment of investment in associates

The carrying value and the related share of results of investment in associates is significant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and to the Group’s results. The Group assesses if
there are any indicators of impairment in the carrying value of its investment in associates. Such
assessment considers any significant adverse changes in economy, market, legal environment,
industry or the political environment. Accordingly, we have considered this as a key audit
matter. The accounting policies relating to investment in an associate is given in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

- We evaluated management's considerations of the impairment indicators of investment in
associates.

- Insuch consideration, we assessed whether any decline in value exists, significant adverse
changes in the economy, market, legal environment, industry or the political environment
in which the associates operate, structural changes in the industry in which the associates
operate, changes in the political environment affecting the associates business and changes
in the associates’ financial condition.

The disclosures relating to Group’s investment in associates are given in Note 5 of the
consolidated financial statements.
-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AJIAL REAL
ESTATE ENTERTAINMENT COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Other information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the
information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the
remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of the
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Groups or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

EEEEEEEEEEE———
24



ANNUAL REPORT 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AJIAL REAL
ESTATE ENTERTAINMENT COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AJIAL REAL
ESTATE ENTERTAINMENT COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company
and the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the information and explanations
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No 1 of 2016, as amended,
and its executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company's Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out
and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No 1 of
2016, as amended, and its executive regulations, as amended, or of the Parent Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2019 that might have had a material effect on the business of the
Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207 A

EY

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

17 February 2020

Kuwait
B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Notes KD KD

Rental and services income 1,714,801 2,334,540
Property operating expenses (517,509) (1,061,671)
Net rental income 1,197,292 1,272,869
Change in fair value of investment properties 4 (350,000) (1,266,151)
Share of result of associates 5 2,990,969 2,467,629
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (444,629) (47,844)
Realised loss on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (124,683) (128,916)
Dividend income 65,000 150,186
Net investment income 2,136,657 1,174,904
Total operating income 3,333,949 2,447,773
Administrative expenses (806,299) (761,505)
Allowance for expected credit loss (2,637) (21,913)
Net operating income 2,525,013 1,664,355
Other income 147,505 93,184
Finance costs (561,323) (472,466)
Reversal of claim for legal expenses 15 - 1,280,319
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO

NATIONAL LABOUR SUPPORT TAX (NLST) AND BOARD

OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 2,111,195 2,565,392
NLST (59,613) (66,066)
Board of Directors’ remuneration 18 (50,000) (40,000)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,001,582 2,459,326
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 3 10.87 fils 13.35fils

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE NICOME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
KD KD

Profit for the year 2,001,582 2,459,326
Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive (loss) income that may be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods:

Foreign currency translation adjustments of an associate (15,179) 25,694
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year (15,179) 25,694
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,986,403 2,485,020

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Notes KD KD
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Furniture and equipment 371,651 24,530
Investment properties 4 66,055,553 63,462,636
Investment in associates 5 70,825,737 66,885,395
Receivable from sublease 1,000,277 -
138,253,218 130,372,561
Current assets
Receivable from sublease 711,858 -
Account receivables and prepayments 1,807,856 174,661
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 1,587,028 2,417,921
Term deposit 8 330,000 -
Bank balances and cash 6 382,713 1,389,149
4,819,455 3,981,731
TOTAL ASSETS 143,072,673 134,354,292
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 9 18,522,000 18,522,000
Share premium 5,199,430 5,199,430
Statutory reserve 10 1,293,969 1,082,849
Voluntary reserve 11 1,110,338 899,218
Capital surplus 12 759,234 759,234
Treasury shares 14 (319,250) (319,250)
Effect of change in accounting policy of investment properties 46,118,487 46,118,487
Foreign currency translation reserve (64,905) (49,726)
Retained earnings 51,883,161 50,094,927
Total equity 124,502,464 122,307,169
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits 226,498 164,685
Account payables and accruals 15 1,469,771 259,963
Murabaha payables 16 14,200,000 10,000,000
15,896,269 10,424,648
Current liabilities
Account payables and accruals 15 2,671,524 1,622,475
Bank overdraft 6 2,416 -
2,673,940 1,622,475
Total liabilities 18,570,209 12,047,123
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 143,072,673 134,354,292

Sheikh\ Ali Al Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah

Sheikh\ Hamad Mubarak Jaber Al Ahmad Al Sabah

Chairman Vice Chairman

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Effect of
change
inaccounting  Foreign
policy of currency
Share Share Statutory Voluntary Capital Treasury investment  translation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus shares properties reserve earnings equity
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD
As at 1 January 2019 18,522,000 5,199,430 1,082,849 899,218 759,234 (319,250) 46,118,487 (49,726) 50,094,927 122,307,169
Impact on adoption of IFRS 16
at 1 January 2019 (Note 2.3) - - - - - - - - 208,892 208,892
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 18,522,000 5,199,430 1,082,849 899,218 759,234 (319,250) 46,118,487 (49,726) 50,303,819 122,516,061
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 2,001,582 2,001,582
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - - (15,179) - (15,179)
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the
year - - - - - - - (15179) 2,001,582 1,986,403
Transfer to reserves - - 211,120 211,120 - - - - (422,240) -
As at 31 December 2019 18,522,000 5,199,430 1,293,969 1,110,338 759,234 (319,250) 46,118,487 (64,905) 51,883,161 124,502,464

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT.)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

ETTect ot
change
inaccounting  Foreign
policy of currency
Share Share Statutory ~ Voluntary Share options  Capital Treasury  Fairvalue investment translation  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus shares reserve properties reserve earnings equity
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD KD

As at 1 January 2018 18,522,000 5,199,430 826,310 642,679 37,213 1,680,298 (319,250) 28,412 46,118,487 (75,420) 48,120,267 120,780,426
Impact on adoption of

IFRS 9 at 1 January

2018 - - - - - - - (28,412) - - 28,412 -
Restated balance at 1

January 2018 18,522,000 5,199,430 826,310 642,679 37,213 1,680,298 (319,250) - 46,118,487 (75,420) 48,148,679 120,780,426
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 2,459,326 2,459,326
Other comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - - - - 25,694 - 25,694
Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - - - - 25,694 2,459,326 2,485,020
Reversal of share options

during the year - - - - (37,213) - - - - - - (37,213)
Dividends paid (Note 13) - - - - - (921,064) - - - - - (921,064)
Transfer to reserves - - 256,539 256,539 - - - - - - (513,078) -
As at 31 December 2018 18,522,000 5,199,430 1,082,849 899,218 - 759,234 (319,250) - 46,118,487 (49,726) 50,094,927 122,307,169

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
2019 2018
Notes KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 2,001,582 2,459,326
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:

Change in fair value of investment properties 4 350,000 1,266,151
Share of result of associates 5 (2,990,969) (2,467,629)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 444,629 47,844
Realised loss on sale of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 124,683 128,916
Dividend income (65,000) (150,186)
Interest income (101,574) (11,171)
Depreciation 80,997 31,319
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 63,596 45,447
Allowance for expected credit losses 2,637 21,913
Finance costs 561,323 472,466
Reversal of share options reserve - (37,213)
471,904 1,807,183
Working capital adjustments:
Account receivables and prepayments 229,168 (74,343)
Account payables and accruals 80,517 (2,122,393)
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities 781,589 (389,553)
Employees’ end of service benefits paid (1,783) (18,524)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 779,806 (408,077)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advance payment to contractor (1,865,000)
Additions to furniture and equipment (1,584) (11,152)
Additions to investment properties 4 (2,679,845) (352,787)
Additions to investment in associates 5 (2,030,577) (317,863)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 265,137 1,120,992
Additions to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (3,556) (75,000)
Dividend received from associates 5 1,066,025 710,683
Dividend income 65,000 150,186
Net movement in term deposits (330,000) 1,000,000
Interest income received 101,574 11,171
Lease collection received 680,593 -
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities (4,732,233) 2,236,230
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (5,537) (929,313)
Finance costs paid (561,323) (472,466)
Lease payments (689,565) -
Murabaha finance facilities available 4,200,000 -
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 2,943,575 (1,401,779)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (1,008,852) 426,374
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,389,149 962,775
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 6 380,297 1,389,149
Non-cash transactions:
Utilization of advance payment 263,072 -
Additions to investment properties (263,072) -

The attached notes 1 to 23 from part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent
Company”) and its Subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 17 February 2020. The General Assembly of
the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements after their
issuance.

The Parent Company is a Kuwaiti public shareholding company registered and incorporated in
Kuwait on 26 October 1996.

The Parent Company activities are as follows:
o All real estate activities including buying and selling lands, real estate and renting and leasing thereof inside
and outside Kuwait;

e Establish and maintain buildings and real estate projects including establishment of residential complexes
thereof;

e Establish commercial markets and entertainment centres, touristic facilities and building special
accommodations;

e Perform all contracting works and trade in building materials requires for real estates and invest in companies
and projects shares with similar objects to the Parent Company’s;

e Prepare studies for real estate projects, whether general of private and execute thereof directly or by proxy;
e Manage properties inside or outside Kuwait and perform works which helps it to achieve its objectives;

e Manage real estate portfolios for its accounts or for third parties and the Parent Company may have interest or
take part in any aspect with persons and companies, establishments and entities which manage or practice
works with similar objects or which may cooperate with it to achieve its objectives or be merged therein or
buy thereof, or be affiliated thereto.

The Parent Company’s shares are listed on Boursa Kuwait.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 were approved by the
shareholders of the Parent Company at the annual general assembly meeting (AGM) held on 26 March 2019. No

dividends were declared by the parent company.

The registered head office of the Parent Company is located at Al Hamra Tower, 26th Floor, Office No. 2, P.O.
Box 22448, Safat 13085, Kuwait.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis modified to include the

measurement at fair value of investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD), which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Parent Company.



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the vear ended 31 December 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary
as at 31 December 2019.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an
investee if, and only if, the Group has:

= Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

= The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
= The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling
interests, and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Consideration received and any investment retained are recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value. It also reclassifies any share of components previously recognised in OCI to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Details of the subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Effective interest in

Country of equity
Name of the company incorporation 2019 2018 Principal activities
Entertainment
Al Hamra Cinema Company K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 98% 98%  services

The Parent Company effectively owns 100% equity interest in the above entity. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on this basis. The ownership of 2% (2018: 2%) is registered in the name of
related parties as nominees. However, the Parent Company is the beneficial owner for 100% equity interest.

EEEEEEEEEEE———
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used in the previous year except for the adoption of IFRS
16: Leases effective from 1 January 2019.

The key changes to the Group’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 16 is summarised below:

IFRS 16: Leases (“IFRS 167)

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an
impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the Group; otherwise it was classified as an
operating lease. Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were
apportioned between finance cost and reduction of the lease liability. In an operating lease, the leased property was
not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised under other
assets and other liabilities, respectively.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases where
the Group is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognised lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. The
Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of
1 January 2019 and accordingly, the comparative information is not restated. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to use the recognition
exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not
contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value
(“low-value assets’).

The Group has recorded right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets under furniture and
equipment, receivable from sublease use assets and the corresponding lease liabilities to make lease payments
under accounts payable and accruals. As at 1 January 2019, the Group recorded right-of-use assets of KD 426,531,
receivable from sublease of KD 2,392,729 and lease liabilities of KD 2,610,368 with an impact on retained earnings
of KD 208,892. When measuring lease liabilities, the Group discounted lease payments using its incremental profit
rate of 4.5% at 1 January 2019.

Lease costs for the year ended 31 December 2019 relating to the right-of-use assets amounting to KD 72,684 are
included under depreciation expenses.

24 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective up to the date of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new standards
and amended standards and interpretations when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3: Business Combinations
to help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the
minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive,
narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business (continued)
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material” across the standards and
to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, "Information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those consolidated financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.’

The amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The Group has concluded that it is acting as an agent in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

- Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

- Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

- Indetermining the transaction price for the services, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration,
the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration and consideration payable to the
customer (if any). The Group does not have any effect from these considerations since the Group is acting as
an agent in all its revenue arrangements.

Taxation

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% of profit for the year in accordance with the
modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that income from
associates and subsidiaries and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when
determining the contribution.

National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance
Resolutions No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and
subsidiaries, cash dividend from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit
for the year.

Zakat
Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit for the year in accordance with the requirements of the Ministry of Finance
resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and then its
recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount
of an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount by recognizing impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-
generating unit). In determining fair value less costs to sell an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.

That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope
of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

Policy effective from 1 January 2019 (IFRS 16)

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a. Right of use assets

The Group recognises right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right of use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right of use assets are subject to impairment.

b. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in- substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental profit rate at the lease
commencement date if the profit rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of profit and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

Policy effective before 1 January 2019 (IAS 17)

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Rent received in advance from tenants

Rent received in advance from tenants represents rent relating to period after the reporting date, but received before
the reporting date, and are included under “accounts payable and accruals” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other finance costs are expensed in the period they occur. Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowings.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise properties under development and developed properties that are held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Properties held under a lease are classified as investment properties when they
are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or
for use in production or administrative functions.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction costs include
professional fees for legal services, commissions and other costs to bring the property to the condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of
day to day servicing of an investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property would result in either gains
or losses on the retirement or disposal of the investment property. Any gains or losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Investment in associates
The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An associate is
an entity in which the Group has significant influence.

39



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2019

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates (continued)

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating
to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised nor separately tested for
impairment.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate.
Where there has been a change recognised directly in the other comprehensive income of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in other comprehensive income. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate.

The Group’s share of profit of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
represents profit after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate. The financial statements
of the associate are prepared for no more than three-month difference in reporting period with the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Upon loss of significant
influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value through
profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of account
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Account receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred
to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

The Group's financial assets include financial assets at account receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and bank balances and cash.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition (continued)

i) Financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (continued)

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when:

= the rights to receive the cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).

EEEEEEEEEEE———
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition (continued)

i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For account receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and borrowings as appropriate. The Parent Company determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transactions costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include murabaha payables, account payables and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Murabaha payables
Murabaha payables is an Islamic agreement which represents the amount payable, on a deferred settlement basis,
exceeding one year for assets purchased under Murabaha arrangements.

Account payables and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)
= In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

= Levell Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above. An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in Note 23.

Treasury shares

The Parent Company’s own shares are accounted for as treasury shares and are stated at cost. When the treasury
shares are sold, gains are credited to a separate account in equity (treasury shares reserve) which is non-
distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account.
Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury
shares are first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the
treasury shares reserve account. No cash dividends are distributed on these shares. The issue of bonus shares
increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting
the total cost of treasury shares.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to all its employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Further, with respect to its national employees, the Group also makes contributions to Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the obligation amount can be made.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Contingencies
Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model within
which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the
Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy).

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification of investment properties
The Group classifies property as investment properties if it is acquired to generate rental income, for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.
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2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties under development and developed investment properties is determined
based on valuation performed annually by independent professional real estate valuation experts who have the
required qualifications and experience in valuing such types of properties using recognised valuation techniques
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee, except if such value cannot be reliably
determined in the case of investment properties under development.

The fair value of investment properties under development is determined using a combination of the sales
comparison approach for the land and cost approach for the construction work. The fair value of developed
investment properties which generate rental income is determined using the income capitalization approach;
whereas, the fair value of developed investment properties which do not generate rental income is determined
using the sales comparison approach based on recent transactions for properties with characteristics and location
similar to those of the Group’s properties.

Impairment of investment in associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associates is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the investment and its carrying value, then
recognises the loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares). Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding
treasury shares) plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. As at the reporting date, the Group had no outstanding
dilutive potential shares. As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and diluted earnings per share are
identical.

2019 2018
Profit for the year (KD) 2,001,582 2,459,326
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year (excluding treasury shares) 184,212,867 184,212,867
Basic and diluted earnings per share 10.87 fils 13.35 fils
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2019 2018
KD KD
At 1 January 63,462,636 64,376,000
Additions 2,942,917 352,787
Change in fair value of investment properties (350,000) (1,266,151)
At 31 December 66,055,553 63,462,636
Investment properties are categorised as follows:
2019 2018
KD KD
Property under development 39,486,553 36,544,636
Developed properties 26,569,000 26,918,000

66,055,553 63,462,636

As at 31 December 2019, an investment property with fair value of KD 61,386,553 (2018: KD 58,444,636) is
pledged as a security against Murabaha payables of KD 14,200,000 (31 December 2018: pledged as a security
against Murabaha payables of KD 10,000,000) (Note 16) and bank overdraft of KD 2,416 (31 December 2018:
KD Nil) (Note 6).

The fair value of investment properties has been determined based on valuations performed by two independent
professional real estate valuers, who are industry specialised in valuing such type of investment properties. One of
these valuers is a local bank and the other is a local reputable accredited valuer. Both valuers have used the following
methods:

=  Properties under development has been valued using a combination of the sales comparison approach for the
land and cost approach for the construction work.
= Developed properties which generates rental income has been valued using the income capitalisation approach.

For valuation purpose, the Group has selected the lower of these two valuations (2018: the lower of two valuations)
carried out within the time range which is one month before or after the reporting date. as required by the Capital
Market Authority (CMA). Based on these valuations, the Group has recorded loss from change in fair value of KD
350,000 (2018: loss of KD 1,266,151) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All investment properties are categorised in level 2 and level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The significant assumptions made relating to valuation of the developed property, that has been valued using the
income capitalization approach, are set out below:

2019 2018
Average rent (per sqm) (KD) 9.7 9.6
Yield rate 6.5% 6.20%
Vacancy rate 0.3% 1.58%
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The table below presents the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant assumptions underlying the
valuation of the investment properties.

Changes in
valuation Impact on profit
assumptions for the year
2019 2018
KD KD
Average rent +1% 219,119 219,722
Yield rate +50 BP 169,769 178,512
Vacancy rate +1% 36,649 45,593
Percentage of operating expenses to annual rental income +1% 254,821 260,405
5 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
The Group has the following investment in associates:
Effective interest in
Country of equity
Name of company incorporation 2019 2018 Year- end Principal activities
Al Hamra Real Estate Company
K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 35.53% 35.53% 31 October Real estate activities
Al Madar Al Thahabia Company
W.L.L. (“Al Madar™) Saudi Arabia 24% 24% 31 December Real estate activities
Movement in the carrying amount of investment in associates during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
KD KD
As at 1 January 66,885,395 64,784,892
Share of results 2,990,969 2,467,629
Additions 2,030,577 317,863
Dividend received (1,066,025) (710,683)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (15,179) 25,694
As at 31 December 70,825,737 66,885,395

The following tables illustrates the summarized financial information of the Group’s investment in associates:

Al Hamra
Al Madar Al Real Estate
Thahabia Company
Company K.S.C.
W.L.L. (Closed) 2019 2018

Associates statement of financial position: KD KD KD KD
Non-current assets 34,393,673 267,147,147 301,540,820 301,335,341
Current assets 1,110,099 7,561,910 8,672,009 6,059,336
Non-current liabilities (44,831) (92,155,348) (92,200,179)  (103,247,910)
Current liabilities (903,056) (6,555,046) (7,458,102) (7,412,178)
Equity 34,555,885 175,998,663 210,554,548 196,734,589
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 24% 35.53%
Carrying value of the investment 8,293,412 62,532,325 70,825,737 66,885,395
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5 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following tables illustrates the summarized financial information of the Group’s investment in associates:

Al Hamra
Al Madar Al Real Estate
Thahabia Company
Company K.S.C.
W.L.L. (Closed) 2019 2018
Associates revenues and results for
the year: KD KD KD KD
Revenues 1,783,279 18,449,621 20,232,900 18,822,173
Results 14,389 8,408,430 8,422,819 6,724,737
Other comprehensive loss (63,246) - (63,246) (107,063)
Total comprehensive (loss) income (48,857) 8,408,430 8,359,573 6,617,674

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

2019 2018

KD KD
Bank balances and cash 382,713 1,389,149
Bank overdraft (2,416) -
Total cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 380,297 1,389,149

Bank overdraft represent facilities granted by a local bank in Kuwaiti Dinars. The effective interest rate is 1.5% (31
December 2018: Nil) per annum over the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate.

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
KD KD
Local unquoted equity securities 1,503,375 2,301,970
Managed funds 83,653 115,951
1,587,028 2,417,921
8 TERM DEPOSIT

Term deposit is denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and placed with a local bank and carry a fixed interest rate of
3.125% (31 December 2018: Nil %) per annum.

9 SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Parent Company consists of:
Authorised, issued and fully paid up share capital

2019 2018 2019 2018
KD KD Shares Shares
185,220,000 shares of 100 fils each , fully paid in
cash 18,522,000 18,522,000 185,220,000 185,220,000

The share premium is not available for distribution.
I —
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10 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and board of
directors’ remuneration shall be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent
Company’s board of directors. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such
transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of
paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of
that amount.

11 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Avrticles of
Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and board of
directors’ remuneration is required to be transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be
discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders’ general assembly upon a recommendation by the Board of Directors.
There are no restrictions on the distribution of this reserve.

12 CAPITAL SURPLUS

Capital surplus represents an amount due to the previous shareholders of the Parent Company, which was forfeited
during 1996 and transferred to the Parent Company’s shareholders’ equity. The amount is freely distributable.

13 DIVIDENDS

The Annual General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on 26 March 2019 approved the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and not to distribute a cash dividend (2017:
5 fils) per share of KD Nil for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: KD 921,064) for shareholders
registered on that date.

14 TREASURY SHARES

2019 2018
Number of shares 1,007,133 1,007,133
Percentage of issued shares 0.54% 0.54%
Market value (KD) 182,291 135,963
Cost (KD) 319,250 319,250

The weighted average market price of the Parent Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
181 fils per share (31 December 2018: 135 fils per share).

Reserves equivalent to the cost of treasury shares are not available for distribution throughout the year these shares
are held by the Group as per CMA guidelines.
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15 ACCOUNT PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2019 2018

KD KD
Amounts due to contractors and suppliers 410,137 200,000
Rent received in advance from tenants 91,558 124,578
Deposits from tenants 269,900 259,963
Accrued expenses 185,574 167,916
Dividend payable 129,854 135,391
Amounts due to related parties (Note 18) 1,037 562

Lease liabilities 1,920,804 -
Other payables* 1,132,431 994,028
4,141,295 1,882,438

* Other payables mainly include legal claim expense relating to National Labour Service Tax and Zakat claimed by
Ministry of Finance, Kuwait. During previous years, the Parent Company recorded expenses for legal claims
relating to National Labour Service Tax (NLST) and Zakat claimed by Ministry of Finance for the years 2011 and
2012. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Parent Company signed a final settlement agreement with the
Ministry of Finance relating to NLST of 2011 and Zakat of 2011 of 1,023,756, for which a provision of
KD 2,304,075 was recorded in the books of the Parent Company. Based on this agreement, the Parent Company
paid an amount of KD 1,023,756 as final settlement of the claimed amount and reversed excess amount of
KD 1,280,319 to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Account payables and accruals are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2019 2018
KD KD
Non-current 1,469,771 259,963
Current 2,671,524 1,622,475

4,141,295 1,882,438

16 MURABAHA PAYABLES

Murabaha payables is obtained from a local bank, denominated in Kuwaiti Dinar and carry an average profit rate
of 4.5% per annum (2018: 4.69%) and secured against investment properties with a carrying value of KD
61,386,553 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: KD 58,444,636) (Note 4).

17 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash
flows - 31 December
1 January 2019 in/(out) 2019
KD KD KD
Dividend payable 135,391 (5,537) 129,854
Murabaha payables 10,000,000 4,200,000 14,200,000
Lease liabilities 2,610,368 (689,565) 1,920,803
12,745,759 3,504,898 16,250,657
Cash
flows - 31 December
1 January 2018 in/(out) 2018
KD KD KD
Dividend payable 143,640 (8,249) 135,391
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18 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

These represent transactions and balances with major shareholders, directors, executive officers and key
management personnel of the Group, close members of their families and companies of which they are principal
owners or over which they are able to exercise control or significant influence entered into by the Group in the
ordinary course of business. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Parent Company’s
management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Associates 2019 2018
KD KD KD
Rent and other expenses (included in property operating
expenses and administrative expenses) 5,084 5,084 784,940

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Associates 2019 2018
KD KD KD

Amounts due to a related party (Note 15) 1,037 1,037 562
Lease liabilities 1,920,804 1,920,804 -

Amounts due to a related party do not carry any interest and are payable within one year from the reporting date.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group during the year were as follows:

2019 2018

KD KD
Salaries and short-term benefits 185,257 174,458
Employees’ end of service benefits 30,431 17,647
Board of Directors’ remuneration® 50,000 40,000
265,688 232,105

*On 17 February 2020, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company proposed 5% bonus shares and proposed Board
of Directors’ remuneration of KD 50,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: KD 40,000). These proposals
are subject to the approval of the Annual Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Parent Company’s shareholders.

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has contingent liabilities representing a letter of guarantee amounting to
KD 21,399 (2018: KD 21,399) issued to the Ministry of Finance in respect of its investment properties, from which
it is anticipated that no material liability will arise.

20 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services, and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

- Real estate investing activities comprises investment and trading in real estate and construction or development
of real estate for the sale in the ordinary course of business and other related real estate services.

- Equities and other investing activities comprise participation in financial and real estate funds and managing
the Group’s liquidity requirements.
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20 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment reporting information is as follows:

52

Equities and
other investing Real estate
activities activities Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD

31 December 2019
Segment revenue 2,931,286 1,714,801 147,505 4,793,592
Change in fair value of investment

properties - (350,000) - (350,000)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (444,629) - - (444,629)
Finance costs (461,227) - (100,096) (561,323)
Other expenses, net - (517,509) (918,549) (1,436,058)
Segment results 2,025,430 847,292 (871,140) 2,001,582
Segment assets 72,412,765 66,055,553 4,604,355 143,072,673
Segment liabilities 10,000,000 4,698,814 3,871,395 18,570,209

Equities and
other investing Real estate
activities activities Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD

31 December 2018
Segment revenue 2,488,899 2,334,540 1,373,503 6,196,942
Change in fair value of investment

properties - (1,266,151) - (1,266,151)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (47,844) - - (47,844)
Finance costs (472,466) - - (472,466)
Other expenses, net - (1,083,584) (867,571) (1,951,155)
Segment results 1,968,589 (15,195) 505,932 2,459,326
Segment assets 69,303,316 63,462,636 1,588,340 134,354,292
Segment liabilities 10,000,000 424,648 1,622,475 12,047,123

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk. Risk is
inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his

or her responsibilities.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk is subdivided into profit rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. It is also subject to
operating risks. The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment technology and industry. They are monitored through the Group’s strategic planning process. The
Board of Directors are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
strategies and principles.

21.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. Management of the Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties, and continually assessing the creditworthiness of
counterparties. The maximum credit risk is limited to the carrying values of financial assets appearing on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to tenants of its investment properties by monitoring outstanding
receivables. The Group limits credit risk with regard to its bank balances by only dealing with reputable banks.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

21.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately. To guard against this risk, management has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with
liquidity considered, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents, and readily marketable securities.

The liquidity profile of financial liabilities reflects the projected cash flows which includes future profit rate
payments over the life of these financial liabilities. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s
undiscounted financial liabilities as at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

Less than 3to12 1to5
3 months months years Total
KD KD KD KD
2019
Murabaha payables 235,875 707,625 11,875,000 12,818,500
Account payables and accruals 410,137 1,540,455 269,900 2,220,492
Bank overdraft - 2,416 - 2,416
Total 646,012 2,250,496 12,144,900 15,041,408
Less than 3to 12 1to5
3 months months years Total
KD KD KD KD
2018
Murabaha payables 112,500 337,500 10,200,000 10,650,000
Account payables and accruals 200,000 1,422,475 259,963 1,882,438
Total 312,500 1,759,975 10,459,963 12,532,438
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

21.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments
traded in the market. Market risk is managed based on pre-determined asset allocations across various asset
categories, diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous
appraisal of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value.

21.3.1 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to profit rate risk on its floating profit bearing murabaha
payables (Note 16).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or loss to reasonably
possible changes in profit rates, with all other variables held constant:

Increase/
decrease Effect on profit for
in basis the year
points KD
2019 (+/-) 100 142,000
2018 (+/-) 100 100,000

21.3.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as the majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars.

21.3.3 Equity price risk
Equity price risk arises from the change in fair values of equity investments. The Group manages this risk through
diversification of investments in terms of industry concentration.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of quoted investments value to reasonably possible changes in
equity prices, with all other variables held constant. The effect of decreases in equity prices is expected to be equal
and opposite to the effect of the increases shown.

The effect on the Group’s results as a result of a change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at 31 December 2019 due to a 5% change in market indices, with all other variables held constant is
as follows:

Effect on profit
for the year before taxes
2019 2018
KD KD

Market indices
Kuwait - -

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018. Capital comprises total equity excluding foreign currency translation reserve and is measured
at KD 124,567,369 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: KD 122,356,895).

EEEEEEEEEEE———
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22 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered into construction contracts with third parties and is consequently committed to future
capital expenditure in respect of properties under construction amounting to KD 15,471,226 (2018: KD 783,746).

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial instruments

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value are not materially different
from their carrying amounts.

The methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values of assets is described in fair value section of Note
2.5: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

= levell Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= lLevel2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

= lLevel 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The following table shows an analysis of the Group’s assets recorded at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy at 31 December:

Level 3
KD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,587,028
Level 3
KD
2018

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,417,921
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23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets which are
recorded at fair value at 31 December.

Net losses
recorded in the  Net purchases,
At the consolidated  transfers, sales
beginning of statement of and At the end of
the year profit or loss settlements the year
KD KD KD KD
2019
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2,417,921 (444,629) (386,264) 1,587,028
2018
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,450,234 (47,844) 1,015,531 2,417,921

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of financial assets:
Managed funds:
Managed funds have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) provided by the custodian of the fund. The

information relating to valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs to valuation to compute the
sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs is not available.

Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of the input to
techniques inputs Range fair value
Market multiples 5% increase (decrease) in the
Unquoted equity securities approach DLOM * 10-509 discount would decrease
(increase) the fair value by
KD 90,171.

*  Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market participants
would take into account when pricing the investments.

Non-financial assets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KD KD KD KD
2019
Investment properties - 39,486,553 26,569,000 66,055,553
2018
Investment properties - 36,544,636 26,918,000 63,462,636
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23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Non-financial assets (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 non-financial assets which
are recorded at fair value at 31 December.

At the Net purchases,
beginning transfers, sales At the
of the year Net losses and settlements  end of the year
KD KD KD KD
As at 31 December 2019
Investment properties 26,918,000 (350,000) 1,000 26,569,000
At the Net purchases,
beginning transfers, sales At the
of the year Net losses and settlements  end of the year
KD KD KD KD
As at 31 December 2018
Investment properties 26,943,000 (81,150) 56,150 26,918,000

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:

Investment properties

Property under development

Property under development is valued using a combination of the sales comparison approach for the land and cost
approach for the construction work. Sales comparison approach is based on a comparison of active market prices
for similar properties and recent arm’s length market transactions, adjusted for difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific property. Estimated cost approach is based on a comparison of the cost of constructing a
similar property taking into consideration depreciation of the construction costs, adjusted for difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific property.

Developed properties

Developed properties are valued using the income capitalization approach, which is based on capitalization of the
discounted annual cash flows from the property, which is calculated by discounting rental income generated
annually by the property using the current market discount rate. Details of inputs to the valuation and sensitivity
analysis are provided in Note 4.
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